Infliximab versus alpha interferon in the treatment of Behçet's disease: the BIO BEHÇET'S RCT

Robert J Moots,^{1,2*} Farida Fortune,³ Richard Jackson,⁴ Tony Thornburn,⁵ Ann W Morgan,⁶ Dan Carr,⁷ Philip Ian Murray,⁸ Graham Robert Wallace⁸ and Deva Situnayake⁹

¹Department of Academic Rheumatology, Liverpool University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Aintree University Hospital, Liverpool, UK
²Faculty of Health, Social Care and Medicine, Edge Hill University, Ormskirk, UK
³Queen Mary University of London, Barts Health, The London Hospital, London, UK
⁴Liverpool Clinical Trials Centre, University of Liverpool, Liverpool, UK
⁵Behçet's UK, Kemp House, London, UK
⁶Institute of Cardiovascular and Metabolic Medicine, University of Leeds, Leeds, UK
⁷Institute of Systems, Molecular and Integrated Biology, University of Liverpool, Liverpool, UK
⁸Institute of Inflammation and Ageing, University of Birmingham, Birmingham, UK
⁹Department of Rheumatology, Sandwell and West Birmingham Hospitals, Birmingham, UK

*Corresponding author robert.moots@aintree.nhs.uk

Published October 2024 DOI: 10.3310/HTFC6304

Plain language summary

Infliximab versus alpha interferon in the treatment of Behçet's disease: the BIO BEHÇET'S RCT

Efficacy and Mechanism Evaluation 2024; Vol. 11: No. 17 DOI: 10.3310/HTFC6304

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

Plain language summary

Behçet syndrome, a very rare disease in the UK, causes major illness. Yet without high-quality, Prandomised, controlled trials, choosing treatment is somewhat hit and miss. We set up a randomised controlled clinical trial to study the two most widely used biologic drugs in Behçet syndrome, infliximab and Roferon, head-to-head and searched for potential blood and urinary markers for response.

Patients with active Behçet syndrome, in the United Kingdom national Behçet syndrome centres and allied clinics, who had not responded to or could not tolerate first-line treatment were randomised to either infliximab infusions or Roferon injections. The primary outcome was modified Behçet's disease activity index at 12 weeks of therapy. Secondary outcomes included modified Behçet's disease activity index at 24 weeks and significant improvements in individual organs, quality of life and Physician's Global Assessments of activity at 12 and 24 weeks. Initial assessment suggested 100 patients were required for a statistically meaningful outcome but was revised down to 80 following recommendations to shorten the trial.

In this first prospective head-to-head randomised controlled clinical trial of two biologics in Behçet syndrome, both drugs worked equally well. There was a non-significant trend for minor benefits of infliximab in terms of tolerability and treatment persistence. Genetic data suggested a potential association between patient outcome and carriage of either rs4803221 or rs7248668 variants in the interferon lambda 3 (interleukin 28B) gene locus in the Roferon arm, but statistical significance was lost with the relatively small sample size. Metabolomics analysis identified potential markers of a metabolic response to infliximab.

The limitations of the study included the single-masked design: patients (but not clinicians) were aware of their treatment, and fewer patients were studied than planned. This limited the strength of analysis for secondary outcomes and mechanistic studies. We now plan to characterise the metabolite(s) from existing samples to design future trials to study if there can be effective targeting of treatment in Behçet syndrome.

Efficacy and Mechanism Evaluation

ISSN 2050-4373 (Online)

A list of Journals Library editors can be found on the NIHR Journals Library website

Efficacy and Mechanism Evaluation (EME) was launched in 2014 and is indexed by Europe PMC, DOAJ, Ulrichsweb[™] (ProQuest LLC, Ann Arbor, MI, USA) and NCBI Bookshelf.

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

The full EME archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/eme.

Criteria for inclusion in the Efficacy and Mechanism Evaluation journal

Manuscripts are published in *Efficacy and Mechanism Evaluation* (EME) if (1) they have resulted from work for the EME programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

EME programme

The Efficacy and Mechanism Evaluation (EME) programme funds ambitious studies evaluating interventions that have the potential to make a step-change in the promotion of health, treatment of disease and improvement of rehabilitation or long-term care. Within these studies, EME supports research to improve the understanding of the mechanisms of both diseases and treatments.

The programme supports translational research into a wide range of new or repurposed interventions. These may include diagnostic or prognostic tests and decision-making tools, therapeutics or psychological treatments, medical devices, and public health initiatives delivered in the NHS.

The EME programme supports clinical trials and studies with other robust designs, which test the efficacy of interventions, and which may use clinical or well-validated surrogate outcomes. It only supports studies in humans and where there is adequate proof of concept. The programme encourages hypothesis-driven mechanistic studies, integrated within the efficacy study, that explore the mechanisms of action of the intervention or the disease, the cause of differing responses, or improve the understanding of adverse effects. It funds similar mechanistic studies linked to studies funded by any NIHR programme.

The EME programme is funded by the Medical Research Council (MRC) and the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR), with contributions from the Chief Scientist Office (CSO) in Scotland and National Institute for Social Care and Health Research (NISCHR) in Wales and the Health and Social Care Research and Development (HSC R&D), Public Health Agency in Northern Ireland.

This article

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the EME programme as award number 12/205/46. The contractual start date was in January 2015. The draft manuscript began editorial review in May 2022 and was accepted for publication in August 2023. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The EME editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' manuscript and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the draft document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this article.

This article presents independent research. The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the MRC, the EME programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, the EME programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

This article was published based on current knowledge at the time and date of publication. NIHR is committed to being inclusive and will continually monitor best practice and guidance in relation to terminology and language to ensure that we remain relevant to our stakeholders.

Copyright © 2024 Moots *et al.* This work was produced by Moots *et al.* under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaptation in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Newgen Digitalworks Pvt Ltd, Chennai, India (www.newgen.co).